



Bylaws of the Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees

I. The Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees is a seven-member board charged with the provision of library services to the citizens of the City of Burlington by the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 21, and contracting entities via 28-E agreements. The requirements for board members and their duties are defined in this chapter of the code. The Library Board may submit suggestions to the Mayor so that the Mayor and Council can work to maintain balanced community representation. Board members ascribe to the Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees Code of Ethics.

II. The Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees meets regularly on the third Wednesday of each month in a meeting room at the Burlington Public Library or, if necessary for safety, virtually. Additional meetings may be called by the President of the Board as business warrants. A quorum of four members is required to conduct the business of the Board. All meetings are to be conducted in compliance with the Iowa Open Meeting Law and established parliamentary procedure.

Public Comment. The Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees encourages community members to share their views. The Board agenda includes time at each meeting for comments. In order for the Board to fulfill its obligation to complete the scheduled agenda and conduct library business in an effective efficient manner, a maximum of 30 minutes of public comment will be permitted.

All community members wishing to speak must sign in with the recording secretary before the meeting is called to order. Each speaker, once recognized by the presiding officer, is given a maximum of 3 minutes to share their views with the Board. If several community members wish to speak, the presiding officer will determine how much time each will be allotted until the total public participation time of 30 minutes is used. The rules may be suspended at the presiding officer's discretion.

No person may speak more than once per meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to the Board of Trustees as a body and not to any Trustee specifically. Public comments must be relevant to the operation of the Library. The presiding officer shall rule on the relevancy of public comments. Behavior that is abusive, personal, impertinent, irrelevant, loud, threatening, slanderous or profane shall not be allowed.

If a community member wishes to share additional comments or did not have the opportunity to speak due to time constraints, they may put their comments in writing. All communication with the Library Director or Board of Trustees is public information.

The Board of Trustees will listen and ask questions; however, the Board cannot act on or discuss items not on the agenda.

III. The following officers will be elected by the Board at the June meeting each year to serve during the following fiscal year (July 1 through June 30):

President has the responsibility to manage Board meetings, speak to the public on behalf of the Board, and sign contracts on behalf of the Board when so directed by action of the Board as a whole. The President also serves as a non-voting ex-officio member of the Friends of the Burlington Public Library Foundation Board of Directors.

Vice-President/Secretary has the responsibility to conduct meetings in the absence of the President, to keep current with Board activities in order to step into the President's role in the event the President is unable to serve, and to assess the accuracy of the reports and minutes that are required for legal purposes.

The City Treasurer, while not a member of the board, performs the functions of Board **Treasurer** by providing reports for the board packet.

IV. A standing Advocacy Committee will be appointed by the Board President at the July meeting each year. This committee works for the betterment of library services in the community by advocating for funding, communicating with stakeholders and community organizations, and promoting library services to community members.

V. The Board may establish from time-to-time ad-hoc committees, appointed by the Board President, for a limited time and purpose.

VI. The library office coordinator shall keep a true and accurate record of all meetings of the board, shall issue notice of all regular and special meetings, and shall perform such other duties as are generally associated with a board secretarial position. In the absence or inability of the library office coordinator, all secretarial duties shall be performed by a designated staff member.

VII. In accordance with the standards set by the State Library, "all members of the library board of trustees participate in a variety of board development training each year." These include staff presentations and articles for review and discussion at the monthly board meetings. The director also will make the board aware of opportunities to attend webinars and conferences.

VIII. These bylaws may be amended by a vote of the Board when the proposed change has been submitted as an agenda item for the regular meeting in the monthly agenda packet.

Revised and Readopted: February 18, 2026, February 22, 2024, October 26, 2022,
August 25, 2021, March 17, 2021, July 17, 2019, January 17, 2018,
February 18, 2015, October 17, 2012, January 14, 2011, July 16, 2008
Adopted: February 16, 2005